ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT COWM TTEE ON
ADM NI STRATI VE REGULATI ON REVI EW
April 24, 2001
3:05 p.m

HOUSE MEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Lesil MQiire, Chair
Representative Jeannette Janes
Representati ve Joe Hayes

HOUSE MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l House nenbers present

SENATE MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Robin Taylor, Vice Chair
Senat or CGeorgi anna Lincoln

SENATE MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Lyda G een

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Drew Scal zi
COW TTEE CALENDAR

NEW MARI CULTURE REGULATI ONS
REVI EW OF UPDATED | NFORVATI ON FROM DEPT ON PI ONEERS' HOVES

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

DOUG MECUM Director

Di vi sion of Commercial Fisheries (DCF)
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

PO Box 25526
Juneau, Al aska 99802-5526

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -1- April 24, 2001



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified to clarify 1issues regarding
maricul ture regul ati ons.

SHANNON O FALLON, Assistant Attorney General
Nat ural Resources Section

Civil Division (Juneau)

Department of Law (DQL)

PO Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behal f of DOL.

STEVEN LaCRO X

PO Box 5322

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as one of the appellants in the
case of ATS & Zaugg et al. v. Alaska et al. as well as a geoduck
farnmer.

SCOTT THOVAS, Managi ng Menber

Al aska Trademark Shellfish (ATS)

Ket chi kan, Al aska 99901

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that the changes in policy
brought about by the new regul ati ons would have kept him out of
"aqua-farm ng", had he known of them prior.

BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, Att or ney

Law O fice of Bruce B. Wyhrauch, LLC

114 South Franklin Street, Suite 200

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of his clients and
their suit against the state.

ROBERT HARTLEY, Shellfish Farner

(No address provided)

Honmer, Al aska 99603

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Thanked the commttee for helping in the
process and being nore fair than the departnent.

MELANI E DOUGLAS Aquatic Far ner

(No address provided)

Kenai, Alaska 99611

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Voi ced concerns about the regul ati ons.

JULI E DECKER, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Regional Dive Fisheries Association ( SARDFA)
(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behal f of SARDFA.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 2- April 24, 2001



RODGER PAI NTER

Al aska Shell fish Growers Associ ati on

(No address provided)

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Al aska Shellfish
G owers Associ ation.

JOHN AGOSTI, President

Al aska Shel |l fish G owers

(No address provided)

Seward, Al aska 99664

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Al aska Shellfish
G owers.

RON LONG

Qut ekcak Shel I fish Hatchery

Seward, Al aska 99664

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on Dbehalf of the Qutekcak
Shel | fi sh Hatchery.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-10, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LESIL MGU RE called the Joint Commttee on Adm nistrative
Regul ation Review to order at 3:05 p.m Represent ati ves
McGQuire, James, and Hayes were present at the call to order.
Senators Taylor and Lincoln arrived as the neeting was in
progr ess. Chair MQ@ire related her understanding that the
mariculture regulations wuld be sent to Departnent of Law by
approxi mately May 8, 2001.

NEW MARI CULTURE REGULATI ONS

Number 0121

DOUG MECUM Director, Dvision of Comercial Fisheries (DCF),
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, referred to a handout
given to the commttee, which included a chronological listing
of the events regarding the revision of the aquatic farm Act,
aquatic farmng regulations, and a summary of the revisions to
the aquatic farmng regulations that were inplenmented from
publ i ¢ workshops hel d over the past several nonths.

MR. MECUM expl ai ned that between 1996 and 1998 there had been a
noratorium on aquatic farm permt applications, caused by a

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 3- April 24, 2001



chal | enge to DNR s [ Depart nent of Nat ur al Resources' ]
procedures. He indicated that there was a four-year period when
no applications were submtted, which created a considerable
backl og in applications. In 1999, when the application period
reopened, [DCF] received over 40 permt applications for aquatic
farmng, many of which were for "on-bottont farmng, while
others were for littleneck clans or geoduck cl ans.

MR. MECUM noted that [DCF] believed these applications raised
sone constitutional and operational issues. To address these
concerns, M. Mecum said [DCF] decided to neet with the aquatic
farm applicants to develop permt stipulations, so the permts

could be processed. Si mul t aneously, |[DCF] responded to the
requests of the farmers by redrafting its regulations to address
sone of these issues. Foll ow ng the application period, [DCF]

issued 11 aquatic farmng permts, nost of the suspended cul ture
permts, and all of the littleneck clam farm ng permts outside
of Kachemak Bay, M. Mecum said, although he noted that the
latter was a "different issue.” Al'l but one of the geoduck
permt applications were approved; however, they were rejected
by the applicants because of their opposition to certain
condi tions. M. Mecum explained that those applicants have
filed a judicial appeal of the conditions in those permts, and
that appeal is currently under litigation.

Number 0384

CHAIR MGU RE asked M. Mecumif he could confirmfor the record
whet her [ DCF] had asked the applicants to agree not to chall enge
final versions of the regul ations.

Number 0411

SHANNON O FALLQON, Assistant Attorney General, Natural Resources
Section, Cvil Division (Juneau), Departnment of Law (DOL), asked
Chair Mc@Quire to clarify if she was asking whether "we" require,
as part of the permt, that applicants not challenge draft
regul ati ons.

CHAIR MGQU RE clarified that she did not want the response to be
narrowed to the point of not answering the fundanental part of
the question. She said she had been told one of the conditions
was that [the applicants] would agree to file [regulations] and
agree not to challenge regulations "at sonme point in that
process."

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -4- April 24, 2001



M5. O FALLON answered that had not been part of it at any point.

MR MECUM stated his recollection that one of the conditions
[the applicants] objected to was the condition that they nust
continue to allow access to the conmon property resources on the
site. He added that there would be no problemif the applicant
had no commobn property resources on the site, and, in sone
cases, the applicants stated on their applications that there
wer e none.

Number 0528

MR. MECUM continued, noting that in 2001, as part of its
regulatory project, [DCF] did the follow ng: hel d public
hearings in Ketchikan, Juneau, and Anchorage on these
regul ations; established a mariculture advisory panel, wth

industry representatives and stakeholder groups; revised its
draft regul ations based on public coments; released [the draft
regul ations] for public review and conment on February 26 (the
second 30-day public coment period); requested that DNR extend
the application for aquatic farm sites; reconvened the panel in
March to attenpt to resolve the remaining issues; held a second
public conment period, which closed on March 27; and conpleted a
third revision of the regulations, which were sent to DOL and
will becone effective in early June.

Number 0602

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if the final draft of those
regul ati ons had been nmade public.

MR MECUM sai d no.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES commented, "So, we don't really know what
we' re tal king about today."

MR. MECUM replied that he could assure Representative Janes that
[ DCF] had addressed approximately 95 percent of the concerns
t hat peopl e have had. The remaining 5 percent of the concerns
deal with the disposition of the common property resources, and
he explained that those concerns would be nore difficult to
addr ess. He added DCF's belief that it would not be able to
resolve that 5 percent because of constitutional questions
rai sed.

Nunmber 0683

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 5- April 24, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR asked if the departnment would apply the new
regul ations to applications that were made in 1999, before these
regul ati ons were even contenpl at ed.

M5. O FALLON answered that all the applications that were
submtted in 1999 woul d have already been "adjudicated, for |ack
of a better word"; therefore, the new regulations would not
apply to them

Number 0739

SENATOR TAYLOR stated his understanding that, in ongoing
litigation, the department had naintained before the court that
there were unconstitutional provisions wthin the existing
statute. He asked if that was a fair statenent.

M5. O FALLON answered no. She clarified that her argunent to
the court is that if the aquatic farm Act is read the way the
appellant read it, it would be unconstitutional. The aquatic
farmAct itself is not unconstitutional, she added.

Nunmber 0809

MR. MECUM added that there are questions of interpretation on
this issue. He continued:

What we've tried to do with the (indisc.) additions
we've established is come up with things that we
believe conport with the aquatic farm Act and that
conport with the other provisions of state |aw and the
constitution. W've tried to do our best to inplenent
this in a constitutional manner.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked the witnesses to clarify whether the reason
the regulations would not pertain to those people who had
applied before was because those [applications] would be
adj udi cated by the tinme the regul ati ons took effect.

M5. O FALLON s answer was twofol d. First, she said one of the
argunents that the appellants are nmaking in the litigation is

that policies were applied which weren't in regulation;
therefore, any of those policies applied would be invalid. She
expl ained "our" argunent to the court: to the extent the court
believes that's true and that "we" should have adopted those
policies and regul ations, the court could remand the

applications back to the departnent for review under the new
[ policies and] regul ations. Second, there is a new application

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 6- April 24, 2001



period com ng up, and regulations need to be in place to govern
t he next application process.

Number 0934

SENATOR TAYLOR asked Ms. O Fallon to confirm that the departnent
told the court that if it should find for it, then the court
should remand the old applications back to the departnent, at
whi ch point the old applications would have to conmply with the
new regul ati ons.

M5. O FALLON responded that if the court were to renmand the
applications back to the departnent, she would consider that a
ruling adverse to the state. She noted that DOL's position was
that if the decision nade by the departnent were found to be
invalid, because it applied policies that weren't in regulation

the remedy would not be to grant the appellant's permt, but
would be to remand the applications back to the departnent for
review, under the new regul ations.

Nunber 1007

CHAIR McGQUIRE said the concern of the conmttee was that the
departnment would be applying policies that were not based in
regul ation, but that appear to be based upon an interpretation
of the statutes and then be playing "catch-up,"” rapidly getting
regul ations into place, so that the regulations are in place by
the tinme the court ruling is made.

Nunmber 1058

MR. MECUM said, from his perspective, the primary reason to have
the regulations and do the work is because the departnment did
publicly state its commtnent to try to develop sone policies
and regulations for aquatic farmng and was criticized by the
| egislature for not doing so in a tinely manner. He added if
the departnent is playing "catch-up" at all, it is to catch up
to the conmmtnment and responsibility to do this in the first
pl ace.

Number 1107

CHAIR MCGU RE added, "It still doesn't make it wong..., in ny
opinion, that you didn't do it prior."

Nunber 1122

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -7- April 24, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES pointed to M. Mcums Regulatory Review
Comm ttee handout [available in commttee packet] and read the
follow ng |ine:

Moratorium on aquatic farm permts resulting from
| egal chal l enge to DNR procedures.

She asked exactly what the status of that issue was and when the
aquatic farm legislation was passed. Representative Janes
expl ai ned that she wanted to get an understanding of the history
of this issue, since she had not been involved until now.

MR. MECUM responded that the legal challenge to DNR didn't have
anything to do with ADF&G and that he was not involved at that
time; however, he said he understood that it had sonething to do
wWith access in Peterson Bay and Kachenak Bay. He noted that
sonme of the fishing groups filed suit over the l|ocation of sone
of the farns and over the issue of denied access, and then
gquestioned the public process and DNR s procedures in
establishing the location of the farns. Subsequent |y, DNR
changed its procedures, based on that |lawsuit, then reopened the
application period, he said.

Number 1235

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked M. Meecum to clarify whether the
| awsuit was from ot her than farm applicants.

MR MECUM replied that it was from commercial fishing groups.
He added his belief that the aquatic farm Act was passed in
1986.

Nunmber 1306

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Mecumto clarify his previous statenent
that regulations were not in place when the applications cane
in, and were now pending in court.

MR MECUM confirnmed that was correct, stating that what
regulations were in place did not address the issue of "on-
bottont clam farm ng.
SENATOR TAYLOR conti nued:

But we had passed a law that authorized it. You

didn't have any regulations in place, but you said you
had policies, because you' ve made an interpretation of

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 8- April 24, 2001



policy at some point in time, w thout any regul ations,
whi ch, apparently, you've now argued that as a policy
of the departnment, even before the court. Can you
tell me how nyself or any other citizen in Al aska
woul d have been able to discern what your departnent's
policy was, say, six, eight nonths ago? It certainly
wasn't in witing; it wasn't in regulations any place.
How woul d I know what your policy was?

MR. MECUM answered, "You wouldn't." He explained that it was
the reason that the departnment set out the regulations for
public review, to seek a concl usion.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he understood that is what happened [as a
result of having no policy]. He stated his assunption that when
there was no policy, people would turn to nenbers of the
departnment for assistance, and those nenbers of the departnent
would work with themto find a sol ution.

MR MECUM confirmed that was true.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if Steve MGee and Bob Piorkowski still
wor ked for the departnent.

MR. MECUM sai d yes.

SENATOR TAYLOR told M. Mecum it was his understanding that the
chair had asked the departnent to have both of those enployees
attend this neeting. He asked M. Mecumif he was aware of that
request.

MR MECUM said he was not aware that the chair had requested
t hat . He explained that M. MGee and M. Piorkowski had cone
to himthe day before this neeting and expressed that they were
feeling wunconfortable about comng to the neeting wthout
knowi ng what they were being asked to address; M. Mecum said he
told those individuals that he had been asked to provide the
testinmony on behalf of the departnent [and therefore] had told
M. MGee and M. Piorkowski not to appear at the neeting.

SENATOR TAYLOR told M. Meecum that that troubled him because
the reason those people were asked to appear at the neeting is
that they are the people who worked with the applicants and who
supported, wthin the departnment, "on-bottoni farm ng. As
"offer of proof” to the commttee, he said it was his
understanding that they were informed that they would have
testified that they encouraged the applicants, worked with them

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 9- April 24, 2001



and interpreted the current policy of the departnent.
Consequent |y, those applicants have invested hundreds of
thousands of dollars, trying to get a permt from the
departnent. Senator Taylor submtted that the only reason those
i ndividuals were not here today is because it would be very
enbarrassing for the departnent to "have you give that
testimony."

SENATOR TAYLOR added that, if it were necessary, he would ask
the chair to recess, rather than to adjourn the comittee
neeting, to allow sufficient time to secure subpoenas from the
Speaker of the House and through the Adm nistrative Regul ation
Review Committee, so that those individuals would be given an
opportunity to testify. He continued:

And this commttee nay be able to find out what your
guote, "policy" was and what were you inform ng people
of six [to] nine nonths ago, until sonebody over there
figured out, "Ch, ny god, these guys mght nmake a | ot
of noney off this; let's figure out how we can stop
it."

Nunber 1525

MR. MECUM responded that subpoenas were not necessary; if he had
known that the chair wanted those people to be at the neeting
they would have been there. He reiterated that he had not been
cont act ed.

Number 1537

CHAIR MGURE told M. Mcum that her staff had conducted
several conversations with his departnent, all throughout the
previous day, in an attenpt to secure testinony of those M.
McGee and M. Piorkowski, either through teleconference or in
per son. She stated it was the conmmttee' s understanding that
those individuals canme to M. Mecum and were advised that he
woul d be the sol e departnent spokesperson.

MR MECUM told the chair that this was a conmmunication problem
and that it would not be a problem having those individuals
before the commttee. In response to a question by the chair
M. Mcum told the commttee he had no objection to Chair
McGQuire's [continuing the hearings] in an effort to elicit the
testinony of the above-nanmed individuals.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -10- April 24, 2001



CHAIR MGURE concluded that this had indeed been a
m sunder st andi ng and that the commttee should nove on.

Nunmber 1583

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES stated her understanding that aquatic farm
permts dealt with that which is under water, while mariculture
dealt with that which is not only under water, but also in the
soils of the water. She asked if that was correct.

MR. MECUM explained that the two kinds of aquatic farmng are
"on-bottom farmng, which is in its infancy in Al aska, and
suspended cul ture. He said geoducks and littleneck clans are
naturally occurring wild stock that people in the state are
asking to farm The suspended cultures, he explained, include
oysters and nussels. He said there are over 150 oyster farms in
Al aska. M. Mecum explained that it was not until nore recently
t hat peopl e have begun asking to start farmng the wild stocks.

Nunmber 1680

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES nentioned aquatic farmng and said, "It
would lead nme to believe that we're doing all those kinds of
things.” She noted that perhaps "the suspended culture is what
you're talking about.” She stated her belief that the State of
Alaska has a very good opportunity to pursue this type of
resource devel opnent. She noted that her position on the issue

was that these products are valuable and that it would benefit
[the state] to do whatever it <could "to make this work."
Representative Janes said she understands that there are
paraneters in which to work. She stated for the record that she
woul d be watching carefully and would like to see sone of these
operations so she can speak about sonmething wth firsthand
know edge. She asked M. Mecum to clarify that he was not
conpl aining about the suspended culture, only the on-bottom
farm ng.

MR. MECUM answered that the concerns regarding on-bottom clam
farmng - the disposition of the wild stocks and the purpose of
use in transfers of ownership to private individuals - don't
exist with suspended culture. He said suspended-culture spat is
purchased and rai sed, and therefore is not a wild stock.

Number 1776

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked for clarification regarding nethods
of seedi ng and grow ng.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -11- April 24, 2001



MR. MECUM expl ai ned that sone spat is purchased from a hatchery
in Seward, while the oyster spat 1is purchased elsewhere.
Littl eneck clam spat can be purchased from the hatchery and the
seed stock can be raised, whereas he believes that the hatchery

has not yet been successful in raising geoducks. M. Mecum
noted the success of raising geoducks and producing spat in
hatcheries in the Lower 48 has been inconsistent and

intermttent.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked M. Mecum about littleneck clams [in
the Lower 48].

MR. MECUM answered that [the Lower 48] seened to be able to
rai se them and produce the seed stock. In response to further
guestioning from Representative Janmes, M. Mcum said Al aska has
wild stocks and wouldn't want any inportation from [the Lower
48] for native stocks. Oysters are allowed in from [the Lower
48] because they don't reproduce in Al askan waters, so there is
no concern about genetic inpact, he added.

Nunber 1857
REPRESENTATI VE JAMES nentioned the di sappearance of "other fish”

from Al askan waters. She said "we" canme to the rescue, by
putting in hatcheries and raising "comt fish. She continued:

It seems to me ... that when we're tal king about these
geoducks and these littleneck clans, ... that we have
a disappearance of those, as well, wth the current
harvesting of these things. And so, it seens to ne

that there mght be a way, at least if we're even
in a trial period, to find sone real good evidence
that we could go in this direction for resource
devel opnent .

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES expressed her hope that everybody shared
her interest in [resource devel opnent].

Nunber 1909
MR. MECUM concurred with Representative James' statenent. He
told the commttee that the conditions placed on the geoduck

applicants would have allowed them to farm if they wanted to
purchase seed stock fromthe hatchery. M. Mecum conti nued:

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -12- April 24, 2001



The conditions that they objected to was our belief
that we couldn't transfer the ownership of the
existing stock to them for the purposes of financing
their operation. And that's the provision that we
don't believe exists.

Nunber 1947

CHAIR MGU RE asked M. Mecumto walk the commttee through what
the future of aquatic farmng wll be in A aska under the
proposed regulations, including the follow ng details: what
does the future look Ilike; who are the people who can
participate; what do those people have to do to "get it going";
and what does the econoni c devel opnent | ook like for Al aska.

MR. MECUM responded that the suspended-culture operations would
not | ook nuch different than they do now, although he stated his
belief that the departnent has relaxed sonme of the requirenents
for farners. In the public-panel workshop that took place, M.
Mecum said, an agreenent was made to change a five-year permt
to a ten-year permt, to coincide with DNR s ten-year |ease. He
expressed his belief that that change would nake it easier for
people to get financing and reduce the anount of paper work
necessary for the applicant. M. Mecum noted a change made to
the proposed regulations, which was the deletion of a
requi renent to provide proof of financing.

CHAIR McGQUIRE asked M. Mecum to clarify that he was talking
about suspended culture.

MR MECUM said, "Well, this would actually apply to all of
them" He referred to his previous conment, repeating that he
did not see a lot of differences in ternms of suspended culture.

CHAIR MGU RE asked M. Meecum to meke a distinction between
suspended culture and on-bottom farmng, to clarify for the
commttee how each of those areas is devel opi ng and what changes
have been made to the regul ations.

Nunmber 2066

MR MECUM in respect to the on-bottom farmng, said the
departnment did issue permts during the Ilast application,
including at least three permts issued for littleneck clam
farmns. In response to a question from Chair MGuire, M. Mcum
said that [geoduck] permts were issued, but the applicants
rejected them as unfeasible; therefore, the departnent had to

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -13- April 24, 2001



deny their applications. He said those applications are now
under appeal . He stressed that the conditions to which the
applicants objected concerned wild stocks.

MR. MECUM noted that in the case of the Ilittleneck clans, the
departnment was able to conme up with a provision that essentially
allows renoval of the existing standing stock by comerci al
fishing, which isn't an "exclusive right of fishery."” He said:

W have regqulatory authority to issue permts for
people to harvest m scellaneous shellfish - littleneck
cl ans conme under that. Permts are issued for people
to renove those clans, sell those clanms, to get rid of
the existing standing stock. So, you don't run afoul
of this exclusive right of fishery.

CHAIR MGU RE asked M. Mecum if, in his opinion, geoducks do
not fall under m scellaneous shellfish.

MR. MECUM expl ai ned that a geoduck fishery already exists and is
a limted-entry fishery, whereas there 1is no significant
commercial fishery on littleneck clans. Littl eneck clans are
very w despread and (indisc.) and significant renovals of them
on a three-or-four acre site don't pose any threat to the
sustained yield of the stocks in that area. He noted that
geoducks occur in very limted locations in very isolated beds.
Whereas littleneck clans are, say, five years when they mature
and nmay be eight or nine years old [at harvest], geoducks nay be
upwards of a hundred years ol d. He added, "So, there's sone
guestions of sustainability if you're going to allow |arge-scale
removal s li ke that."

CHAIR MGURE offered that there is a future in suspended
culture and, perhaps, in littleneck farm ng, but asked M. Mecum
if he anticipated that Al aska would ever have a future in
geoduck farm ng.

MR. MECUM expl ained that there are areas that "we" would never
anticipate going comercial fishing, because there are so few
geoducks. He told the conmttee that during the last round of
permt applications and based on the public input received, he
had proposed establishing a threshold density whereby below a
certain level would be designated for farmng and above that
| evel would be designated for comrercial fishing. M. Mecum
said the department was told it would be sued, however, because
"you couldn't tell one person that they could do it and another
that they couldn't.”

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -14- April 24, 2001



CHAIR McGUI RE asked M. Mecum to explain how he planned to dea
wi th geoducks in the regulations, in a way that is neaningful
and allows for geoduck farm ng in Al aska.

MR. MECUM replied that it may be that the departnment needs the
| egi sl ature's help on this issue.

Nunber 2272

SENATOR TAYLOR, in an effort to clarify the issue at hand,
outlined points previously discussed, as follows: there was a
spoken policy within the departnent; people were encouraged by
the departnment to file applications and to "try and get off the
ground with these things"; and a set of regulations now exists,
but has not been seen yet. He then asked M. Meecum if it is
true that the departnent is currently permtting farners for
littleneck clanms to harvest and sell the natural stocks of clans
fromthose farns.

MR. MECUM sai d yes, under comrercial fishing regulations.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted that according to the departnent's new
policy, clanms that occur naturally at a farm site can only be
used for the |imted purposes of brood stock and not for
commercial harvest. He asked M. Mecum "How do they get around
t hat one?"

Nunber 2319

MR MECUM offered the follow ng exanple: An applicant woul d
cone to the departnent with an area in mnd that he/she wants to
farm  The departnment would then give the applicant a permt to
harvest and sell the clans, under comercial regulations.
Anyone who wanted to harvest those clans could do so.

SENATOR TAYLOR cl arified that he was tal king about a farmsite.

MR MECUM explained that there is no exclusive wuse for
harvesting; therefore, the farnmer or anyone else could harvest
any particular site.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Mcum if the departnment intended to

have two di fferent managenent schenes for the same species: one
for the farnmed product and one for the standing stock.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -15- April 24, 2001



MR. MECUM said yes. In response to a followup question from
Senat or Taylor, he said, although that systemis conplicated, it
is working. He noted that presently there are three such cases.

SENATOR TAYLOR postulated that there is one reginen for the
farmed product and one reginmen for standing stocks. He asked,
"How do | know, when that clam cones to the surface, whether he
was a farnmed clamor a happy little natural clanP"

MR, MECUM answered that it is difficult, but the departnment has
come up with conditions that deal with the issue. For exanpl e,
all the Ilegal-size, marketable product is renoved, |eaving
behind the small, juvenile clans. Then, he said, through the
efforts of laying down predator netting, renoving inhospitable
substrate, and thinning down the clans, the productivity of the
beds is increased. He defined farmng for on-bottom species,
like Ilittleneck clans, as "increasing the productivity, or
i ncreasing the bionmass, through sone sort of enhancenent effort,
as opposed to just going out and harvesting, which is just
commercial fishing."

SENATOR TAYLOR told M. Mecum that he was having difficulty
telling the difference, because, in commercial fishing, clans
that are harvested nust neet a certain size requirenent, or they

can't legally be taken. He said it is known, in the case of
[ittl eneck clans, that those clans that fall back - as natural
clans, not farnmed clanms - enhance the stock because there are

fewer clans left to conpete for food, so they grow bigger.
Senator Taylor pointed out what was really being tal ked about
was a natural stock that's being harvested, then harvested
agai n. He said the discussion was not about identifying and
separately managing a farmed species as opposed to a natural
stock, yet the regulations have been set up in tw different
categori es: farmed and natural stocks. Senator Tayl or asked
M. Mecumif he could understand why the issue was confusing.

MR. MECUM concurred that this is a very difficult issue and that
the aquatic farm Act did not provide any guidance. He said the
departnment has been attenpting to find a solution for severa
years. He told the commttee that the confusion could have been
avoided if, in the aquatic farm Act, the legislature had stated
that stock acquisition permts - which give the farnmer the right
to harvest wild stocks - could be issued for purposes of blue
stock, (indisc.) propagation, and for financing the farner's
operation. M. Mecum noted that the constitution states there
shall be no exclusive right of fishery. He said giving one

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -16- April 24, 2001



farmer, on one site, ownership of all these resources is nost
excl usi ve.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if a person could get a permt to get
littl eneck clans from soneone else's farmsite.

MR. MECUM sai d yes.
Number 2562

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked M. Mecum to confirm that he had
stated that the aquatic farm|[Act] had passed in 1986.

MR. MECUM concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES i nquired whether, during the 15 years since
then, [the departnent] had ever suggested to the |egislature
t hat changes needed to be made to the | egislation.

MR. MECUM said, "Not yet."

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES told M. Mecum she was concerned about
t hat . She said the legislature is here to help, but can't help
if it doesn't know what needs to be done.

Number 2609

MR MECUM said the first tinme the issue had been contenpl ated
was when an oyster farnmer with a |low inconme approached him and
asked if he could get a permt to harvest the clans that were on
his farmsite, in order to make nore noney. M. Mecum i ndi cated
he had given the man a commercial fishing permt, wth the
caveat that this could be done, unless it got "out of control."
He explained that there is no way for himto limt access; if
anyone el se approached him he would have to give that person
the sane opportunity. M. Mecum told the commttee that was
exactly what happened: All  the oyster farnmers who had
littleneck clans on their site wanted a permt to harvest the
clans. M. Mecumsaid, "I'mprobably the cause of all of this."

MR, MECUM said people eventually weren't satisfied with the
smal| operations and wanted to make hundreds of thousands of

dollars [farmng clans]. People's efforts to expand have
resulted in sustained yield problens, problens with other users,
and public conflicts. He noted that the [aquatic farm ng] Act
itself is very vague and "w de open." The departnent has been

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -17- April 24, 2001



trying to inplenent this to the best of its ability, but it has
been a difficult task.

Nunber 2703

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if M. Mecum had sent anyone out to conduct
studies before granting the permit to that first oyster farner
who had asked for the littleneck clampermt.

MR MECUM sai d no.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if the process was the sanme for the permts
t hat foll owed.

MR. MECUM said the departnment gave permts to about six farners,
allowing for the harvesting of 100 pounds of clans per week, for
52 weeks.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if the departnent had, during any part of
this process, gone out to conduct any surveys.

MR. MECUM said sonme surveying was done by the departnent. In
answer to a follow up questions by Senator Taylor, he
hi ghlighted that the departnent had worked with a surveyor naned
Rodger Painter.

SENATOR TAYLOR posited: "So, out of the six, you went and
| ooked at one.” He stated his understanding that the objections
and concerns that M. Mcum had expressed, regarding harvesting
of native stocks, were based upon his concerns about
sustainability. He al so expressed his understanding, from the
testinmony given by M. Meecum that the departnent has no idea
what the volune of Ilittleneck clams is in Southeast Al aska,

Honmer, or anywhere else, or where a person could go to find
geoducks. He asked M. Mecumif he could confirmthat.

MR. MECUM replied that the departnment had actually done surveys
in many areas on geoducks. He said the departnment surveyed al
of the littleneck clam sites where the applications were nade

during the recent round of applications. He enphasized the
abundance of littleneck clams by telling the commttee that "a
house-sized lot ... has a trenendous nunber of littleneck clans
on it."

SENATOR TAYLOR asked the wtness if he had limted the new
permttees to 5,200 pounds per year.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 18- April 24, 2001



MR. MECUM answered, "On the farm sites, the way it works is we
renove all of the |egal-size standing stock and then they get
into a farm ng operation.”

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if renoving the standing stock gave a
better picture of the volune in the area, and if the farnmer was
then limted to taking no nore or less than a certain percentage
of that vol une.

MR.  MECUM responded that once the farners are in place,
sustained yield really isn't a question. He explained: "These
organisns that are there, that are their farmed product, are
theirs to sell and do with as they wi sh." He added there are
conditions that the departnment puts on farners: They have to
return the lot back to its original condition, as part of the
program when they | eave, the bal ance nust be restored.

SENATOR TAYLOR said the departnent has no idea what the bionass

is, until it is harvested by the farner. He detailed this idea:
So, ... he could harvest just a little bit his first
year, establishing the background bionass. Then he's
now, quote, "farmng," so he harvests a greater anount
- significantly greater - from there on out, all the
way through his operation. He gets done wth the

operation and all he has to [do] is leave you wth
ground that's got that anpbunt that he chose to take
out the first time, because, you don't have divers
down there and you don't know what that biomass is.

SENATOR TAYLOR conti nued:

VWhat | really think is kind of incredulous is that
we're attenpting to draft regul ations, based upon that
type of absentee ... nmanagenent, where we sit in an

office and he turns in a report to us for how many
clans he took, and nmaybe once a year sonebody goes out
and |looks at the site. | mean, | have a hard tine
understanding that, | really do, as a nethod or neans
for which managenents (indisc.) take place, especially
when you're looking at the same species on the sane
ground, and part of it is background and original and
part of it is sonehow farmed, and that sonehow they
change character, but you're going to nanage for those
two different species at the sanme tine. | find that
very difficult to understand, or enforce.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -19- April 24, 2001



Number 2930

But nmy main concern, | guess, with this whol e process
IS: W're looking at probably over 3,000 mles of
coastline, mninum right here in Southeast Al aska,
and | know you've only surveyed a very, very snall
portion of that nass. And to tell the commttee that
we have large anounts of littleneck clans out there
and, gee, just one little area produces a whol e bunch.

And, unless I'm mstaken - | do want to give you a
chance to comrent on this - | heard in your voice a
real concern that sonebody m ght nake hundreds of
t housands of dollars. Wiy in the world shouldn't we
have 5,000 of them out there naking hundreds of
t housands of dollars a year, just on littlenecks now,
before we get to ... [tape ends m dspeeck].

TAPE 01-10, SIDE B
Nunber 2970

MR. MECUM responded he did not know why Senator Taylor heard
reluctance in his voice. He told the commttee he nanages
fisheries statew de, where people nake great amounts of noney.
He said the departnment nanages fish, not noney; he couldn't care
| ess how nmuch noney the farners make and hoped they made | ots of
noney.

SENATOR TAYLOR rem nded M. Mecum of his previous testinony. In
it, Senator Taylor indicated that M. Mecum expressed a concern
that if the farnmers began to harvest nore than 5,200 pounds a
year, he would have to firm up the regul ations. He told M.
Mecum that he did not nean to suggest this, but he had heard it
in his voice and it concerned him

Number 2930

MR. MECUM responded that his intention had been to say that in

the departnent's efforts to help these people out, it created "a
little bit of a nonster.” He said the primary issue is
di ssolution of the standing stocks. He told the commttee that

nowhere in the law is it stated that people can go out and get
excl usive ownership of comon-property resources for financing
their operations. He added, "If it did, |I'd be the Nationa
Bank OF Geoduck and I'd start witing checks today."

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 20- April 24, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR inquired what the departnent would do if it |ost
the suit; if the judge were to decide that the departnent was
not using the right policies, was inventing policies, and did
not wite anything down, and that the people had conplied with
the | aw and should be granted their permts.

Nunber 2864

MR.  MECUM suggested there nay be an appeal to consider.
However, if ultimately the court hands the decision down that
the issue has been contenplated by the legislature, that it is
not unconstitutional, and that the permts should be granted,
then that is what the departnment would do. He added that he
"woul dn't bat an eye."

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if M. Mcum wuld then go back and
restructure the regulations to provide the same opportunity for
ot her peopl e.

MR. MECUM said Senator Taylor was delving too far into "the
realm of the hypothetical” at this point, and that he would
prefer to not answer that question.

Nunmber 2835

CHAIR McGU RE stated that many nenbers of the conmttee were
concerned about rushing through regulations now, when the
departnment has not done so since 1986. She described the
current push as getting sonmething on the books that justifies
policies that were being applied on a questionable basis. Chair
McQuire stated her belief that there may be a | ogical reason for
a judge to decide that the departnent is wong and, therefore,
grant the permts. There is a possibility that the departnent
may find itself with a set of regulations on the books which are
inconsistent not only with the original statute, but also wth
the judge' s finding. She suggested that the departnment wait to
see what the judge has to say, [then] let the legislature go
back to the table and send a clear directive on the issue, and
then put a set of conprehensive regulations into place.

Number 2780

M5. O FALLON said there is another round of applications that
the departnment will have to act on. She added, "The rush is not
the litigation; the rush is to get regulations in place.” She

said that if the Alaska Suprene Court agrees wth the

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -21- April 24, 2001



appellant's interpretation of the "aquatic farm Act" then the
regul ations will have to be changed.

Nunber 2731

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked M. Mecum if, after hearing the concerns
and questions raised, he could cone back before the commttee
and make a different set of reconmendations that would satisfy
both parties.

MR, MECUM answered that the regulations the departnment was
prepared to file with the |ieutenant governor were "a very good

product." He said that two industry stakehol der panel groups
participated in "negotiated rule-making" in drafting them He
said the departnent addressed all of the concerns wth the

regul ations froma practical perspective. M. Mecum said he had
"forced [his] staff to spend days, considerable anpunts of tineg,
to get these things done.” M. Mecum expressed his pride in the
process he and his staff went through. He said sone people wll
not be happy with sonme of the provisions but added, "That's
life. " He said his departnent has done everything it possibly
could, "bending over backwards" to try to come up with a good
product, and he thinks it has achieved its goal.

MR MECUM said he does not know what he would have done
differently. He said that at sone point the departnment will be
working with the |egislature. M. Mecum stated that Senator
Torgerson introduced a bill that addressed sone of the issues in
question and that over the interim the Senator wanted to
continue working on the bill. He said sone inprovenents could
be nmade, but he did not see what could be done differently in
relation to the regul ations.

Nunber 2602

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES stated her synpathy for M. Mecums
position on the issue, but added that the commttee and others,
were at a disadvantage because he knew what was in the
regul ations "and we don't." Representative Janes said it was
hard to know if the conmttee would be satisfied with the
changes until they have a chance to look at them She asked if
the regul ations, as drafted, provide opportunity for littleneck
cl am and geoduck farm ng.

MR. MECUM answered that they did.

Number 2552

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -22- April 24, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR asked if, as a requirenent of the regulations,
the proposed farm would be located in an area that has been
surveyed by the departnent and "excluded as an area that could
support a commercial fishery,”™ why anyone would want to farm
geoducks where they do not occur naturally.

MR MECUM said that the majority of geoduck farm permt
applications submtted during the last round would neet the
criteria outlined in 5 AAC 41. 240. He said that in the public
heari ngs he had referenced, many people stated a |ack of need
for "standing stocks" of geoducks. M. Mecum poi nted out that
there was a need for "suitable substrate.” He pointed to an
exanpl e of experinental geoduck farming in British Colunbia and
Washi ngton, where the nobst successful vyields cone from areas
wi t hout | arge anounts of w |l d geoducks.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that the regulations would set up a pattern
by which all of the comercially viable geoduck areas in the
state will be excluded fromfarmng and |left to other commerci al
users.

MR. MECUM di sagr eed.

Nunber 2382

STEVEN LaCRO X said he "nade geoduck applications in Southeast
Al aska” and that he was "involved in an appeal of the
departnent's - what [he] considered - denial.”" He said that he
and his co-plaintiffs refuse to accept the permts that the
departnent issued because of two reasons. The first was that
they would be "forced to accept these regulations that were
com ng down the road." He said he thought it better to obtain

permts based on current |aw. He said his second conplaint was
that he and his co-plaintiffs do not feel that they can farm
under two nmanagenent systens.

MR, LaCRO X said he agreed with M. Mecum on nost points and
that the departnent has done a thorough job of trying to address
probl ens. M. LaCroix said, "W went into these applications
t hi nki ng, and were advised by the departnent, that we could do
what we proposed to do."

MR. LaCRO X said that the regulations will make it hard to get a
good farm site because there will be two different nmanagenent
structures: a commercial fisheries structure for the standing
stock, and a farm ng structure for what is planted. M. LaCroix

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -23- April 24, 2001



said that the requirenent to distinguish between farned and wld
stocks will be inpossible to satisfy. He said that he and his
group made six applications and that to his know edge, none of
them were in places where there was a commercial fishing
i nterest. He said that he tried to do it right and that he
deserved a permt.

Number 2208

CHAIR MGQU RE asked M. LaCroix to clarify what type of on-
bottom farm ng he was |ooking at doing and how far along he was
in it. She also asked where he would be left if the proposed
regul ati ons were fil ed.

MR, LaCRO X said that what he had applied for was "the five acre
| ease. " He then clained that he wanted to plant one acre of
clans per year at each five acre site. He estimated it wll
take five years for these clans to grow. He said that would
al l ow an ongoi ng supply of geoducks "by planting and harvesting
rotationally, one acre of ground at each site.” He said his
estimates were that the farnms could produce 100,000 pounds of
geoducks per acre. He was not sure how long it would be before
this figure would be realized.

MR, LaCRO X agreed with M. Mecum and his statenent that sone
people intentionally applied for areas wthout wld geoducks

because they were considered a "liability." He raised the issue
of wild geoducks not passing tests for Paralytic Shellfish
Poi soni ng (PSP). M. LaCroix said that "there's a |l|ot of

ganbling that we're taking,” and that if he is forced to nake
all applications in areas that don't have standi ng stocks, that
risk is beyond what he can afford to take.

MR. LaCRO X said that there nust be sone indication that clans
m ght be able to grow in the ground that has been applied for.
M. LaCroix indicated that clean sand and good substrate are
needed to grow val uabl e geoducks. He defined a val uabl e geoduck
as one with white flesh and said that is the result of sandy
substrate and plenty of food and current. He indicated that [a
requirenent to farm around the standing stock would nean that
the best ground of these sites would be out of bounds. M.
LaCroix said he did not think the solution was to try to "farm
around the individual aninmals." He said the solution would be
found at the "site selection |evel."

Nunmber 1935

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 24- April 24, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR asked what the average length of tinme required
for a geoduck to mature to marketabl e size is.

MR. LaCRO X said it depends on the area. He said the best area,
in "South Sound," Wshington, produced two pound geoducks in
three and a half years. He said that geoducks larger than two
pounds are of |esser value, and he indicated |arger geoducks as
one of the problenms with standing stock.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that he was concerned about not having
enough information on the life cycle of shellfish. He spoke of

the decline in the abalone and rock cod fisheries. He
attributed this to a poor understanding of the tinme it takes for
these species to nmature. He called for "firm science” on the

tinme it takes for a geoduck to mature. He asked M. LaCroix if
he knew Steve McGee and Bob Pi or kowski .

MR LaCRO X said he net Steve MGee during an application
process with the Al aska Coastal Managenent Program He said he
met Robert Piorkowski and various others when he was in
Ket chi kan, pronoting aquatic farm ng. In response to one of
Senator Taylor's questions, M. LaCroix said M. Piorkowski
encouraged himto begin aquatic farm ng.

CHAI R MGU RE asked M. LaCroix what woul d happen to his geoduck
farmif the regulations were to go into affect on May 8.

Nunmber 1725

MR. LaCRO X answered that that he would only be affected if the
regul ations apply to him He surm sed that he would be able to
obtain a permt and seed. He said he had a problem with the
proposed regul ations and how he would have to farm around the
standi ng stocks because of them He said he could not neet the
requirenent to identify and protect the standing stock. M.
LaCroi x said he would have to take the standing stock "out of an
acre this year [and] plant it, and [he] would propose that the
departnment doesn't allow [him to do that to the second acre
until [he] denonstrated that he planted the first acre.” He
said that it would be a good policy for the departnent to nake
sure that farnmers are doing what they say they are going to.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if it was an "insurnountable"” problemto
work things out with the departnent.

MR LaCRO X answered that he did not think so.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -25- April 24, 2001



SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how Bob Pi orkowski encouraged him to get
into the business.

MR, LaCRO X said that he had been shown videos of the hatchery
that was built in Seward, and that his inpression was that it
was a "sales pitch" for the new hatchery. He said there was a
maj or presentation on how to identify Ilittleneck clam sites.
M. LaCroix said that he had been harvesting geoduck clanms and
"just substituted geoducks for littleneck <clans”™ in his
applications. In response to a question from Senator Lincoln,
he said that he was proposing to farm geoducks.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked how M. Pi orkowski's presentation
encouraged himto farm geoducks.

MR. LaCRO X answered that the key factor that encouraged hi m was
the advent of a hatchery that could produce geoduck seed. He
said without a hatchery there is no reason to farm geoducks.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if there was a discussion of negative
i npacts at the presentation.

MR LaCRO X told the commttee that he was given books by those
at the presentation that said the negative inpact would be "if
you didn't get enough clans."” He added that they were not
tal king about geoducks but rather a "different species of
clanms.”

Nunber 1482

SCOTT THOVAS, Managing Menber, Al aska Trademark Shellfish, a
newly fornmed, [imted liability conpany (LLC) based in Ketchikan
with six partners, testified that he is devel oping comerci al -
scale aquatic farmng. He said his conpany has been in the
process for two and a half years. He said there has been a | ack
of comuni cation between the department and his conpany on the
i ssue of geoducks.

MR. THOVAS said in 1999, his conpany relied on the departnent's
existing policies. He said that the departnent's policy was "if
you passed all these hurdles" and there were no conflicts, the
standing stocks on a proposed site becane the applicant's
property. He said since 1999 the departnent has changed that

policy. M. Thomas quoted Frank Rue as saying that "the
departnment believes that standing stocks of the permtted
species pass to the permttee as property of the permttee.” He

said that his conpany relied on M. Rue's statenent to devel op

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 26- April 24, 2001



its business plan. He said that l|like Steve LaCroix, he was
encouraged by departnment workshops put on by Bob Piorkowski, to
secure areas with large standing stocks and thin them out if
need be.

Nunber 1364

MR, THOVAS said the departnent "got scared” when applicants
intentionally selected sites wth standing stocks. He cl ai ned
that he would not encourage anyone to select an area where the
particular specie of shellfish to be farned did not exist
naturally. He said he relied heavily on the policy that he
understood the departnent to hold on standing stocks. He said
he'd sold his comrercial seining business in order start
shellfish farmng, and he is "just about bankrupt." M. Thomas
said that the changing policies are "discrimnately applied.”
He claimed that wunder Alaska Departnment of Fish and Gane
managenment, he was getting $1.10 per pound for geoducks and
those farming littleneck clans were receiving $3.00 per pound.

Nunber 1212

MR. THOVAS showed the conmttee inmages relating to the process
of shellfish farm ng. He said geoduck farmng is "exciting and

it works." He said one-tenth of the resource can produce a
hundred tinmes the results due to the technol ogy. He said that
if the regulations are passed, "there is no new on-bottom
aquaculture in the state of Al aska." He said that if someone

farms in areas where the crop does not exist naturally, as the
regul ations require, that person would not stand a good chance
of success. He said that he would never have taken the risk of
starting up in the business if he had known the departnment would
change its policies. M. Thonas said that there is no reason to
change the policies.

MR. THOVAS referred to a chart of Southeast Al aska and said
there are 10,000 mles of coastline. He said that "our clean

fresh water"” is a huge resource and one of the greatest untapped
natural resources in the state. He said Al askan shellfish are
of premum quality and could lead to a strong industry for the
state. He showed the commttee the location of his farm by Long
| sl and. M. Thomas said he chose his site 45 mles away from
the nearest conflicting use. On the map he showed a conpari son
of the size of his operation in relation to the rest of the
harvest areas in Southeast Al aska. He showed the commttee the
areas that were open to geoduck harvest, and he listed areas by

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -27- April 24, 2001



Biorka Island, Goddard Hot Springs, the Craig area, Noyes
| sl and, the Gravina area, and Kah Shakes.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked M. Mecum if he agreed wth the areas
i ndi cated by M. Thonas.

MR. THOVAS said that generally, he did.
Nunber 0773

MR. THOVAS said the departnment has clainmed that they are trying
to work with geoduck farnmers and alleviate conflict; in the year
prior, however, it opened a commercial dive fishery for geoducks
next to his farm He said that there is 50 mles in either
direction fromhis farmto develop a commercial fishery, but the
departnment has chosen to |locate one right next to his operation.
M. Thomas said there is a provision in the state constitution

for aquatic farm ng. M. Thomas added, "Bottom line, if these
regul ations are put in place, | think it puts an end to the
industry."” In response to Senator Lincoln, M. Thomas said that

it would be decided in his lawsuit, but he didn't think the
regul ati ons would apply to his conpany.

Number 0544

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if M. Thomas had an attorney throughout
the life of his business.

MR. THOVAS replied that tw and a half years before, his
busi ness hired Bruce Wyhrauch to research and review statutes
to make sure [the business] could utilize the standing stock.
He said the departnent does have legitinmate concerns about
people comng to utilize a resource and "taking it and running."
M. Thomas said his conpany was against this type of activity
and that his conpany agreed to post a restoration bond with the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR). He said his conpany
agreed to post a performance bond whereby they would be required
to plant an acre to receive the next acre. He said they agreed
to pay for an on-board observer to ensure conpliance. He said
the departnent refused all of his conpany's offers. In response
to Senator Lincoln's question, M. Thomas said his market was in
Hong Kong. He said he believed that his conpany could market
pur pl e-edged rock scallops and oysters donestically. He said
China is doing a great deal of aquatic farmng and said that it
is the fastest-growng food-producing market 1in the world,
growi ng by 9.6 percent since 1984. He clained that Al aska could

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 28- April 24, 2001



be part of that market and clarified that he neant "only
shel I fish and sea plants."”

SENATOR LINCOLN asked how large of an area M. Thomas was
referring to on the map he provided.

MR, THOVAS said the total area his conpany had applied for was
33 acres; he added that it would be the largest aquatic farmin
Sout heast Al aska. Responding to Senator Lincoln, he said it was
right on the shore, just outside of the intertidal zone. M.
Thomas said that one of the reasons for the selection of the
areas was to offset developnent costs by wutilizing standing
st ocks. Anot her reason for the site's selection was the warm
wat er of the Japanese Current, according to M. Thomas. He said
the nutrients brought by it, hopefully, would give his farm an
advant age. He conveyed the difficulty of getting a "live
product” from the bottom onto a plane, and into Hong Kong, as
well as the difficulties brought by PSP.

Nunmber 0100

BRUCE WEYHRAUCH, Attorney, Law Ofice of Bruce B. Wyhrauch,
LLC, testified that he was representing the appellants in ATS &
Zaugg et al. v. State et al. He said that when M. Thonmas hired
him he started working with M. Mecum and the Departnment of Law,
attenpting to reach an out-of-court resolution. He said he had
been working on the case since 1999.

TAPE 01-11, SIDE A
Number 0072

MR.  WEYHRAUCH said, having worked wth the departnment on
commercial fisheries, he had never seen it act so aggressively
to stop an industry. He cited AS 16.40.105 and said it outlined
four specific criteria, drafted by the |egislature, concerning
i ssuance of aquatic permts. He said the statute allows the
standing stock to pass to the aquatic farnmer for sale. He said
there are e-mails from the Departnent of Law saying that it has
reviewed the statute and agrees farnmers are entitled to sell
st andi ng stock.

MR. VWEYHRAUCH said that the suit was an attenpt to work with the
state on an ordered, natural resource devel opnent project that
the state has a legitimte interest in as a public resource.
M. Weyhrauch said, wth that as a background, that it 1is
critical that aquatic farmers recognize the state's interest and
allow the state absolute access to their farnms and business

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -29- April 24, 2001



pl ans, so they can prevent the "'rape, ruin, and run' kind of
attitude" previously nentioned. He noted that every tinme a set
of conditions was proposed, "someone stopped it from happening."”

Number 0244

MR, WEYHRAUCH said he thinks that there is a way to "work this
with industry and the parties” and "that it should be worked so
that industry can go forward." He said that rather than take it
to court, the state should attenpt to work things out with the
i ndustry. Perhaps a joint resolution would be a good sol ution
said M. Weyhrauch

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES wondered if the parties were too far along
in the process, and if a lawsuit decision was required to "set
sone sort of precedent.”

MR, WEYHRAUCH answered that the state and appellants would have
to agree on a request to stay any decision, pending sone sort of
resol ution. He said he thinks the appellants want some sort of
deci sion, "adverse or not," to get a sense of certainty in their
busi ness affairs.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said his question was if it would be
prudent public policy to let this continue on, or if it would be
prudent to end it.

Number 0460

MR, WEYHRAUCH responded that the state and industry nust have a
set of criteria that they can live with, and at this point they

don't. Until they have a set of criteria, both the state and
the farmindustry will not be able to reach a stay.
Number 0553

CHAIR QU RE asked M. Weyhrauch if he had gone back to | ook at
the legislative intent in hearings surrounding the aquatic
farmng Act, and if it was his inpression that the Act was
passed because of a desire to see aquatic farmng in the state.

MR. VWEYHRAUCH said that it was. He qualified his statenment by
adding that there was a definite public policy against finfish
farmng, and no aquatic farnmer he knows, or would work for,
favors finfish farmng. But he said that there was a set of
regulations in place before the aquatic farm Act was adopted
which tells of the legislature's intent as part of AS 16.40. 105.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 30- April 24, 2001



Most of the debate centered on fin-fish farmng and its
prohi bition, and he could not find the word "geoducks"” in the
| egi sl ative history.

Nunmber 0636

SENATOR TAYLOR said he found it incredible that the departnent
has argued that the policy under which M. Wyhrauch's clients
applied was an unconstitutional interpretation. He pointed out
that the law can be nmde constitutional by passing another set
of regul ati ons.

MR. WEYHRAUCH said the state believes that the interpretation
which the appellants have on how stocks should be handled is
unconstitutional because it violates the exclusive-use clause of
the constitution. He said he disagrees with the state's
interpretation because the state has already approved his
clients' actions as a viable form of aquaculture allowed under
the constitution. He added that when the Departnent of Law did
the review of the Act, there were no |egal issues, only policy
ones; that is in the record.

Nunber 0781

SENATOR TAYLOR said he was having a hard time understanding how
the state could be saying a law is unconstitutional on one hand,
while using the sane law to justify the inplenentation of other
regul ati ons. He said if what the departnent |led the applicants
to believe was based on an unconstitutional law, "we have a
totally contradictory philosophy <comng out of the sane
departnent in about a two-year period.”

MR. WEYHRAUCH said the problem with aquatic farmng is that its
policies and conditions have changed over tine; argunents change
the policies yet again. M. Weyhrauch clainmed that people nust
be ever vigilant of the departnment for its next set of new
st andar ds, and added that this nmakes business decisions
i npossi bl e. Answering Senator Taylor's question, M. Wyhrauch
said in order to know the departnment's policies prior to
drafting of regulations, "bits and pieces dribbled out" as a
draft proposal.

Number 0923

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE asked for M. Wyhrauch's opinion on what
the coonmttee and | egislature should be doing on the issue.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -31- April 24, 2001



MR, VWEYHRAUCH answered that the legislature nust neke a strong
statenent that the law it passed in the 1980s is the |aw that
should apply to the departnent now. The departnment should be
held to the interpretation of the statute. He said that
statenents made to the public had changed. M. Weyhrauch said
he feels if the legislature adopts regulations that make it
i npossible for an aquatic farmer to exist, or that change the
rules, it wll be bad. He put forth his belief that the
| egi sl ature should nake sure that the regulations "pass nuster”
with the aquatic farm industry in "a nore unaninous way than
t hey do now. "

Nunmber 1024

SENATOR LINCOLN stated she was "a |little nervous" about
litigation. She said if the legislature steps in and makes a
strong statenent about the interpretation of legislation, it
will be "stepping into the courtroom" She said she was not
sure that the Departnent of Law would nmake the sane
interpretations as the |egislature. Senator Lincoln said that

she would like to see the issue resolved in a manner that is
beneficial to both parties, but she did not want the |egislature
to "interject" in an ongoi ng case.

Number 1108

MR. VEYHRAUCH cl ained that the |egislature would never be naned
in his lawsuit. The legislature is the policy arm of the
governnment; that the court is bound to interpret what it does,
consistent with the constitution. M. Weyhrauch said, "If the
| egislature finds a mpjority wll to step in and clarify

sonet hing, that what the court is going to do wth that policy
statenent, just as it wuld do with these regulations, and
determ ne whether the policy statenent now can be applied to the
issues in front of the court.”" He said he could not foresee how
the legislature's Acts mght work in court.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked M. Mecum how nmuch consensus the
departnment had for the new regul ati ons.

Nunber 1222
MR. MECUM replied that he could not put a nunber to it, but said
that 160 changes were made to the regulations. He said the

changes addressed 95 percent of the problens people had with the
new regul ations. M. Mecum said the regulations covered a great

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -32- April 24, 2001



variety of 1issues beyond just the issue of "who gets the
geoducks. "

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE nade the point that "just saying that the
regul ati ons were changed 160 tines doesn't give [the comm ttee]
any indication about whether they're good regulations or not."

MR MECUM clarified that the changes were nade to accommobdate
the industry. He said that 95 percent of the changes people
want ed were nade.

SENATOR TAYLOR stated that there is no industry or aquatic
farmer constituency base. He said there are only a small nunber
of littleneck clans, while there are quite a few people doing
suspended aquaculture with oysters and nussels, practically no
one doi ng on-bottom aquacul ture, and a conpeting group. He said
that those in the dive fisheries are concerned about their
access to resources. Senator Taylor pointed out that the
| egi sl ature and the departnent had done nothing on the issue.

SENATOR TAYLOR said the first geoduck surveys were done by the
departnment, by request of hinself and Representative John Sund
in 1986. He conveyed that the noney for the survey was given by
Silver Lining Seafoods to the departnent to gain information on
an area near Ketchikan. Senator Taylor said that the survey
made way for the first dive fishery on geoducks and that the
area in question was exploited until it was depleted. He said
t hat people nmust pay noney to have the departnent survey any new
ar ea. He clained that it is the "exclusive decision of the
department where even to | ook™ for new geoduck areas.

SENATOR TAYLOR suggested that it would be nice if the departnent
were to go out and survey 2000 acres or 200 acres in an ongoing
program to gain a good understanding of the organisns and their
envi ronnent .

Nunber 1602

ROBERT HARTLEY, Shellfish Farnmer, testified via tel econference.
He thanked the commttee for addressing concerns wth the
process the departnent wused in developing aquatic farmng
regul ations. He thanked the committee for hearing objections to
t he devel opnent of regulations banning clam farmng in Kachemak
Bay, and added that he felt those regulations were based on
"faulty science." He thanked the commttee for hearing his
request for equity, where "the Departnent of Fish and Gane did
not."

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 33- April 24, 2001



MR. HARTLEY said that on the matter of the proposed regul ations,
a lot of progress had been nmade as far as nmaking the regul ations
wor kabl e, but added that there was a lot of work to do on the
i ssue of standing stocks. He clainmed that it affects both on-
bottom farners and suspended aquacul ture farners.

Nunber 1723

MELANI E DOUGLAS (ph), Aquatic Farner, who testified via
t el econf erence, echoed M. Hartley's coments that t he
committee's intervention "got things underway in a reasonable
fashion.” She said her main concern was that there be a fina

draft of the regulations remtted to the Departnent of Law. She
said she was concerned about what the "5 percent” entailed. M.
Douglas said that the standing-stock issue was significant to
her as a nussel farner.

JULI E DECKER, Executive Director, Southeast Al aska Regional Dive
Fi sheries Association (SARDFA), testified via teleconference
that she enpathized wth the frustrations she heard from
committee nenbers. She said the farmers are not the only ones
to have spent tine and resources on this issue. M. Decker said
SARDFA has been involved since 1999, when geoduck farners
applied for sites, saying they contained marginal wild stocks or
no stocks, but that were later found wth a large nunber of
[wild] geoducks on their sites.

M5. DECKER said that SARDFA is interested in commercially viable
stocks in Southeast. She said it seened to her that it is
possible for geoduck farnmers and dive fishers to coexist
peaceful ly. She clainmed the problem with the aquatic farm Act
is that it is not specific about species.

MS. DECKER said from what she had heard from di vers, geoducks do
not grow all over Southeast Alaska, but rather they grow in
pockets. She clained that there is nore area with substrate
that is accommpdating to geoducks than actual areas of geoduck
occurrence. Ms. Decker added that in British Colunbia and
Washi ngton State, geoducks are being farnmed intertidally, a
manner that is not naturally occurring. Ms. Decker drew the
conclusion that the only two areas outside of Al aska where
geoducks are being farnmed in places that do not have standing
st ock.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 34- April 24, 2001



M5. DECKER said lack of funding was holding back the dive
fisheries in Al aska. She said her organization has | obbied the
| egi slature for funding for the mariculture industry.

Number 2063

RODGER PAI NTER, Al aska Shellfish Growers Association, testified
via teleconference that he was happy wth the conmttee's
"highlighting the situation with the regul ations.” M. Painter
said the industry is convinced that the process it had wth the
departnment is a result of the attention the legislature paid to
t he issue.

MR. PAI NTER t hanked the departnent and the efforts of Doug Mecum

to try reaching a resolution to the regulation problens. He
said he is hopeful that the regulations will conme through in
such a manner that he and his industry "can live with them"” He
pointed out that he was wunsure how the departnent would
interpret and carry out the new regulations. He added that he
did not know what the outcone of the |awsuit would be. M.

Pai nter said he hoped that the commttee would work on the issue
over the interim

SENATOR TAYLOR directed a question to the departnent. He asked
if prior to submtting for final signature, the departnment could
submt the new regulations to the committee over the interimfor
one | ast public process.

M5. O FALLON answered that the draft regulations from the

departnment are available to the public to ook at. She said
that the final proposed regulations that are to be submtted to
the lieutenant governor's office were still being reviewed by

the Departnment of Law. M. O Fallon said if the departnent were
to send those regulations out for public comment again, there
woul d be no regulations in place to deal with the next round of
appl i cations.

SENATOR TAYLOR gave an exanple of how he had helped to work out
sonme other contentious conmittee issue. He asked if "before the
final hamer drops" and there is another |awsuit, perhaps the
departnment could give the committee sonme "breathing room"”

Nunber 2429
M5. O FALLON answered that the Departnment of Law s advice to the

Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane was, "You're going to get
yourself in just as much trouble w thout having [regul ations],

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 35- April 24, 2001



with this next application period, even though there are sone
unresol ved questions of law. " She said she felt as nuch risk of
getting sued if the departnent does not submt the regulations.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that he understood the risk but added that
"we went 15 years wthout [regulations].” He said that the
"confrontational wall" was not hit until about a year prior. He
said that a little delay would not be too nuch to ask. He also
asked if the commttee could have a copy of the actua

regul ations that have been approved by the Departnent of Law
before they are submitted to the |ieutenant governor.

M5. O FALLON said she believes the new regulations are part of
the public record.

SENATOR TAYLOR voiced his concern that the regulations will be
signed when the legislature is out of session.

Nunmber 2648

MR. MECUM said people came to him saying that the application
process should not be opened up because of all the problens. He
said that he disagreed because of his belief that not opening it
up would be bad public policy. He said that one can delay
forever but people have the right to submt applications for
permts. He said that the Departnent of Law s advice to him on
the issue of inplenmenting regulations was, "Suck it up and get
goi ng. " He expressed his appreciation of the commttee' s work
on the issue, but he added that he commtted to a public process
and panel before the conmmttee began addressing the issue. M.
Mecum said he and the departnent have really tried to gather
public input and incorporate it into the regul ations.

MR. MECUM brought wup the "noving target" issue. He said
"bureaucrats making up stuff as they go along is not the way for
an industry to get developed.” He clainmed his departnent

"decided to take the bull by the horns" to develop "rules of the
road. "

Nunmber 2758
REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked if all those involved in the suit had
an opportunity to see the <changes to +the nobst current

regul ati ons. He said that the wuncertainty did not make the
commttee confortable.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 36- April 24, 2001



MR MECUM said the first version of the regulations did not
pl ease many people, including hinself. He clained that the
second version saw nore acceptance, but there were still points
of contention. He described how a third revision was steered by
a third public panel neeting. M. Meecum said that he "nade
comm tnents" at these public panel neetings. He called for
people's trust in the commtnents he and his departnent nade.
He said that he did not know of another option.

SENATOR TAYLOR told M. Mcum that there is another option:
"show us what you did." Senator Taylor asked if the new
regul ations would be nmade available to the public before their
being finalized. He asked what the problemwas with letting al
of those farners who had testified see the new regul ati ons.

Nunmber 2887

MR. MECUM said that letting people see finished regulations "is
not a problem™ He said that a further delay in inplenenting
the regulations was "a bridge we have already crossed.” He said
"if we were going to delay, we should not have had this
application period." In response to a question from Senator
Taylor, M. Mecum said that the application period started on
the first of January. He nentioned that the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources responded "sonmewhat grudging” when asked for
an extension of the application deadline. He said the whole
process was "shifting" and t hat it was "incredibly
bureaucratic.” He said the departnent's request had been
"shifted back a couple nonths already,” and stated his concern
about what an additional delay would do to the entire process.
M. Mecum said the regulations are changeable and if sonething
is wong with them they will be changed.

TAPE 01-11, SIDE B
Number 2954

SENATOR TAYLOR said there will be a better idea about things
when the court decision is nmade, as well as when the final
regul ations are released. He called for at least a brief period
of reflection on "where we're going from here.” He said that
the departnent's claim to appeal the case if it loses is
frustrating.

MR MECUM said, "W are at the end of the line for this

particul ar process.” He said the new regulations would be nade
avai lable to the public upon the conpletion of the Departnent of

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -37- April 24, 2001



Law s review He clainmed he wll change the regul ati ons again
to accommpdate legitinmate concerns. M. Mecum described the
court case as a very unfortunate circunstance.

Nunmber 2918

MR. MECUM nade reference to SB 141 and said Senator Torgerson
had the idea of a "lease-track systenmi to get around difficult
issues. M. Mecumsaid that in a neeting with Senator Torgerson
and a legislative attorney, the attorney said the bill "was not
going to cut it." According to M. Mecum the attorney told him
that transferring "these resources to these individuals" would
require a constitutional amendnent. He said he had to follow
his attorney's advice.

Nunmber 2859

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked what the period of tine between the fina
regul ati ons' approval by the Departnment of Law and the tinme the
| i eut enant governor gets them on her desk woul d be.

M5. O FALLON said draft regulations are adopted by the
departnent; they are then sent to Departnent of Law and are
revi enwed. Smal | changes are made and the regulations usually
make it to the lieutenant governor's desk within the sane day.

Number 2780

SENATOR LINCOLN said she inferred that when the public gets a
copy of the final version, the regulations are ready to be
signed into law and that they are signed very quickly
thereafter. She said that she did not want to give those who
had testified against the regulations fal se hope. She said she
did not see the legislature as having the ability to nmake
changes to the regulations at that point. Senator Lincoln
reminded Ms. O Fallon of her claim that she did not see the
regul ations in need of any change. She wanted it nade clear to
those with concerns about the regulations that it would not be
easy to get the departnent to recognize a "legitimte concern,”
if it were satisfied with the version it was submtting for
passage.

Nunber 2690
MR. MECUM agreed with Senator Lincoln that it was not an easy

process to change regulations, and that he did not want people
to assune that changes would be nmade overnight. He said that

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 38- April 24, 2001



"we're not always right,” and that there are farners wth
| egitimate concerns. He said the public panels and neetings
have addressed all of the contentious issues except those of
standi ng stocks' transfer of ownership.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if the issue of standing stocks was not a
"legitimate concern” that would warrant a closer | ook before the
regul ati ons are signed.

MR MECUM said that the departnment felt the transfer-of-
st andi ng- stock issue had been taken care of, and that "it passes
muster with the constitution.”

SENATOR LI NCOLN then asked how the departnment had taken care of
t he probl em

MR MECUM answered that in the case of clam farners, the
departnent said: "If you want to have this site, you can have
it. If you want to plant seed and harvest that seed, you can do
that. |If you want to get wild stock, the only way you can do it
is get a stock-acquisition permt." He clarified that a stock-
acquisition permt is for "bringing about culture and
propagation, and not for, in essence, doing your cost recovery
of your facility upfront.” M. Mecumsaid that in the case of a
farmer with no standing stocks, there is no problem but for a
farmer with "lots and lots and lots,” it is going to be nore
difficult. He said that there would have to be sone way to
differentiate between farned and wild stocks. M. Mecum stated
that all of these points have been reviewed and approved by the
Depart ment of Law.

Nunmber 2566

SENATOR LINCOLN made the statenent that those with conplaints
would still look at all of the departnent's provisions and
considerations of their problens, and once again not be
sati sfi ed. She asked M. Mecum if the departnent's response to
t hese people would be: "That's not a legitimte concern. W' ve
taken care of that. [1'll see you in court.”

MR. MECUM responded that "this is our interpretation and yes,
court is one route, comng back to the legislature....” Those
kinds of issues can't be dealt wth by regulation by the
departnent, he said.

JO NT ARR COW TTEE - 39- April 24, 2001



CHAIR MGU RE countered, "Yet at the same tine, you fully
admtted you treat littleneck clans in an entirely different
manner . "

MR. MECUM responded by saying that littleneck clam farns nmnust
get a stock-acquisition permt for the "cultivated product." He
said that the only way for themto get exclusive ownership is if
it is the stock that they have grown.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how M. Painter's selling of Ilittleneck
clans that he has not grown is not "treating one clam guy a heck
of alot different than you're treating the other clamguy."

Number 2474

MR. MECUM said there are |longstanding regulations on the books
that allow the departnent to issue permts for the harvest of
m scel | aneous shel | fish.

SENATOR TAYLOR added that "you could do that wth geoducks
t oday. "

MR, MECUM answered that geoducks are a limted entry fishery;
therefore, the departnment could not issue special permts. He
said that the regul ations are adopted by the Board of Fisheries.

CHAIR MGU RE asked if one could apply for a limted entry
permt for geoducks on his/her property.

MR MECUM replied that if one wanted to participate in a
commerci al geoduck fishery, one would have to obtain a limted
entry permt.

Nunber 2422

CHAIR McGU RE enphasized that she does not think the aquatic
farmers are trying to participate in a comrercial fishery;
rather, they are trying to access their stocks, or not have to
differentiate between wild and farned stock.

Number 2400

JOHN AGOSTI, President, Al aska Shellfish Gowers, testified via
t el econf erence. He asked if it was appropriate for the Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane to reserve all of Al aska's geoduck
resource to one commercial wuser group. He pointed out that
Al aska's other fishery resources are allocated anong many user

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -40- April 24, 2001



gr oups. He said it is a matter of fundanental fairness that
access to a common-property resource be spread to nore than one
user group. He urged the conmttee to reconsider and follow
t hrough on Representatives McQuire and Scalzi's bill on aquatic
farmng. M. Agosti seconded M. Wyhrauch's recomendati on for
sonme sort of legislative resolution to sone of the problens.

Nunmber 2268

RON LONG Qutekcak Shellfish Hatchery, said that he had heard
the nunber of 150 farns in the state in previous testinony, but
assured the coommittee that there were only 56 permtted farns in
the state presently. He said that his hatchery is successfully
growi ng geoducks and that he hopes to be able to supply a market
demand, "if it becones a reality.” He said that the tal k about
95-percent confort |level was not correct. He clained that his
confort level was approxinmately "75 to 80 percent of the portion
of the regulations that we could talk about." He noted that
portions in litigation could not be talked about, and sonme of
those are critical issues. He said quantifying confort |evels
regarding the regulations is difficult because of a poor idea of
what the final changes to the regulations wll be. M. Long
said that this is not a tinme to sit back and relax, but rather a
time for those concerned to renmain engaged and i n conmuni cati on.

Nunber 2160

MR. LONG t hanked the committee for their rush to action, and the
departnment for "a pretty responsive job of engaging the
st akehol ders. " He said that the earlier reference to grow ng
geoducks in intertidal zones, as in Washington, was off the mark
in ternms of the Alaskan context, due to the possibility of
intertidal freezing in the wnter. M. Long added that there
were specific application issues that needed dealing with, nore
operational than regul atory.

MR. LONG said he was concerned that if the appellants win their
case, the state will appeal and the result will be a protracted
period of delay. He said the appeal process will be costly for
the farmers concerned, and possibly for his hatchery as well.
M. Long expressed hope that the |legislature and the departnent
will work together to take care of everyone's interests.

Number 2005

SENATOR TAYLOR  brought up the subject of "off-limts”
regul ati ons once again. He noted that they were the "biggest

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -41- April 24, 2001



crunch part of these regs."” He asked, "Is there any reason that
the departnment can't provide this commttee with a copy of those
regs after they've come back from [the Departnment of] Law, and
give us a reasonable period of tinme to review those regs before
they're submtted to the |lieutenant governor for signature?”

M. MECUM answered that he did not think there was tine. He
said the deadlines were extended and there was just not enough
tinme.

Number 1917

CHAI R M@GU RE asked how nmany applicants the departnent had. She
said, "your stated reason is that you have to rush because you
have an application period that opened in January, so your
concern apparently is for the applicants.” She asked who was
the rush for. Chair MQ@ire asked if the rush was for the
applicants and if so, how many there were.

MR MECUM told the commttee that he did not know how many
applicants, because the departnent was in the mddle of the
application process at the time. M. Mecum said he woul d expect
quite a few He conveyed the Departnent of Law s advice that
failure to draft regulations would only increase the pool of
litigants.

Nunber 1855
SENATOR TAYLOR said he did not see how two extra weeks spent in

having the regulations nove from the Departnment of Law to
[ Li eutenant Governor] Fran U ner's desk was so crucial that it

could not be spared to ensure good regulations. He made it
clear that he believed rushing the regulations was a "recipe for
litigation." He said he was disappointed in the departnment for

not providing enough tine to review the new regul ations before
t hey becane | aw.

CHAIR MGU RE asked M. Mecum if he had answered the question of
how many applications had been received to date.

MVR. MECUM said that his depart nent does not get the
applications; the Departnent of Natural Resources gets them He
said that his departnment has been working hard to facilitate the
conpl etion of the regulations.

CHAIR McGU RE said that she would call Departnment of Natural
Resources for the nanes of concerned applicants, and ask

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -42- April 24, 2001



[applicants] whether it would be nore desirable to wait another
few nonths for "sound, solid regs" or to have them overnight.

Nunber 1719

VR, MECUM asked what a "rush job" is. He said the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act talks about a 30-day comment
period. He said it is fairly subjective, but he did not believe
it to be a "rush job.™

CHAIR McGQUI RE answered that the departnent had 15 years to dea
wi th these issues.

MR. MECUM said that when he came to his job two years prior, he
"got an earful"” from the legislature, from "legislative audit,"
and from the industry that the departnent has to develop
regul ati ons and establish "rules of the road.” He said that the
depart nment has nmde commtnents to cone up wth good
regul ati ons, but now sone people are not happy with them He
said he has tried to live up to the departnent's conmtnents and
make a "good product."”

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the Joint

Commttee on Admnistrative Regulation Review neeting was
adj ourned at 5:57 p.m

JO NT ARR COW TTEE -43- April 24, 2001



